
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Public Accounts Select Committee 
Agenda 

 
Wednesday, 20 December 2017 
7.30 pm,  
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact: Timothy Andrew (timothy.andrew@lewisham.gov.uk) 
 
This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the agenda may be audio recorded 
and/or filmed. 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2017 

 
3 - 10 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

11 - 14 

3.   Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
There are none. 
 

 

4.   Annual complaints report 
 

15 - 60 

5.   Private finance initiatives 
 

61 - 66 

6.   Household budgets 
 

67 - 80 

7.   Select Committee work programme 
 

81 - 100 

8.   Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Public Accounts Select Committee 
Members 

 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held 
on Wednesday, 20 December 2017.  
 
Janet Senior, Acting Chief Executive 

Tuesday, 12 December 2017 
 
  

Councillor Maja Hilton (Chair)  

Councillor Chris Barnham (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Paul Bell  

Councillor Brenda Dacres  

Councillor Amanda De Ryk  

Councillor Carl Handley  

Councillor Simon Hooks  

Councillor Mark Ingleby  

Councillor Roy Kennedy  

Councillor Sophie McGeevor  

  

   



 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
SELECT COMMITTEE 

Thursday, 16 November 2017 at 7.30 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Maja Hilton (Chair), Brenda Dacres, Amanda De Ryk, 
Carl Handley, Simon Hooks, Mark Ingleby, Roy Kennedy and Kevin Bonavia 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillors Chris Barnham and Paul Bell 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Timothy Andrew (Scrutiny Manager), David Austin (Head of Corporate 
Resources), Robert Mellors (Finance Manager, Community Services and Adult Social 
Care), Barrie Neal (Head of Corporate Policy and Governance), Dave Richards (CYP 
Group Finance Manager), Janet Senior (Executive Director for Resources & 
Regeneration) and Selwyn Thompson (Head of Financial Services) 
 
 
 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2017 

 
1.1 Resolved: that the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2017 be 

agreed as an accurate record. 
 

2. Declarations of interest 
 
2.1 There were none. 
 

3. Responses from Mayor and Cabinet 
 
3.1 David Austin (Head of Corporate Resources), Janet Senior (Executive 

Director for Resources and Regeneration) and Selwyn Thompson (Head of 
Financial Services) responded to questions from the Committee, the 
following key points were noted: 

 

 School balances were held for use by schools but they were treated as 
part of the Council’s cash balances. 

 The internal advert for the new procurement and commercial services 
post had been published. 

 A meeting had been held with the Association of Public Service 
Excellence, further work would be carried out to determine how best the 
Council might make use of the organisation’s services. 

 
3.2 Resolved: that the response from Mayor and Cabinet be noted. 
 

4. Lewisham Future Programme 
 
4.1 David Austin introduced the report, the following key points were noted: 
 

 The Council was on a journey of austerity, which began in 2010. This 
would last until 2020 and most likely it would continue into the mid-
2020s because of the current direction being pursued by the 
Government. Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 Not only was the financial position difficult, there was also a high level of 
uncertainty around policy, as noted in the medium term financial strategy 
in July. 

 The potential uncertainties and pressures included: the Government’s 
intention that local government should become self-financing; variations 
around the level of council tax funding and funding for adult social care 
as well as changes to the improved Better Care Fund and the risk of 
retrospective adjustments to the New Homes Bonus. 

 Information was awaited about the plans for fair funding. 

 There was a major programme of health and social care integration, 
which was liable to change rapidly. 

 There were also restraints around borrowing, which might constrain 
some of what the Council could do. 

 The ongoing welfare reforms and the roll out of universal credit also 
presented potential future issues. 

 At the regional level there was the uncertainty around business rates 
pooling as well as the possible implications for London’s economy of the 
UK’s exit from the European Union as well as future changes to 
London’s demographics. 

 The savings target for 2018-19 was £22m and based on the projections 
in the medium term financial strategy the estimation was that £10m a 
year would be required after that. 

 If savings were not made in one year, the Council had to use reserves to 
meet the gap, however – the savings still needed to be made in the 
following year. 

 It was predicted that there would be a £13m overspend at the end of 
2017-18 of which £7m was unachieved savings. 

 Adding new savings proposals to an overspend and to unachieved 
savings was not feasible. The current plan was to consolidate the 
Council’s position and to achieve the savings that had already been put 
forward in previous years. 

 
4.2 David Austin, Janet Senior and Selwyn Thompson responded to questions 

from the Committee, the following key points were noted: 
 

 The Council had used reserves to set a balanced budget for three years. 

 There were a number of factors which would affect how long the Council 
could sustain itself whilst using reserves. 

 The majority of the Council’s existing reserves were allocated to specific 
commitments and projects. The Council should make it through next 
year using the reserves but beyond that it would become increasingly 
challenging. 

 There might be difficult decisions to be made about the level of services 
that could be delivered. 

 The current focus was on delivering the savings proposals that had been 
put forward and balancing the budget, however, the level of risks, 
uncertainties and pressures (as set out previously) remained and each 
could have a significant impact. 

 Management attention remained focused on delivering savings. 

 There were a number of reasons that savings proposals were not being 
achieved, in some instances savings proposals had been made but 
increases in demand had negated the saving, in other areas there were 
issues with capacity or changes required as a result of consultation. 

 There were some savings which were technically complicated to 
achieve. Page 4



 Work was carried out with service group managers and directors to 
identify where there were significant obstacles to achieving savings. 

 There was a rigorous process to challenge services on delivering 
savings however, some of the savings proposals had also been 
reversed because it was realised that they were unachievable. 

 To date more than £160m of savings had been brought before members 
and £153m had been delivered. Some proposals had been rejected. A 
lot had been learnt through this process about the councillors’ priorities. 

 
4.3 Councillor Bonavia (Cabinet Member for Resources) also addressed the 

Committee. It was noted that: the Council was half the size it was in 
2010. Also, in equivalent terms, the Council’s general fund had been cut 
by 63% over the same period. 

 
4.4 Janet Senior and Selwyn Thompson responded to questions about saving 

proposal I13 (more efficient and effective finance processes) the following 
key points were noted: 

 

 The Council did not routinely write cheques for the delivery of services. 
Officers could not recall a time at which the Council had run out of 
supplies due to problems with the procurement system. 

 The Council had been using Oracle for 20 years. The proposal was to 
use additional functionality to streamline service delivery. 

 The new solutions would not be put in place until officers were assured 
that they would work effectively. 

 Options were being explored for the processing of invoices through 
Oracle using ‘Isupplier’. LB Havering was already using this system so it 
was proven to be effective. 

 The roll out of additional Oracle services would require a cultural change 
to the way in which officers worked. 

 The transformation approach being taken by the Council was an 
integrated programme, which considered use of assets, changes to 
ways of working and the use of technology as well as staffing, training 
and change management. 

 
4.5 David Austin and Janet Senior responded to questions about savings 

proposal I14 (loss of the police officer secondment), the following key points 
were noted: 

 

 Civil prosecutions would still be pursued by the Council. In order to 
pursue criminal cases the Council would need to work with the local 
police, however, the majority of work undertaken at present related to 
the civil rather than criminal cases. 

 There were resources across London (such as the counter fraud hub) 
that the Council could make use of. In a number of instances, such as 
housing, the powers for prosecution lay with the Council rather than the 
police. These had to be purchased on a case by case basis. 

 Information about fraud cases was shared with partner organisations. 
 
4.6 Resolved: that the report be noted. The Committee also agreed to thank 

officers for their work. 
 

5. Management report 
 
5.1 Barrie Neal (Head of Corporate Policy and Governance) introduced the 

management report and directed members to areas for management 
Page 5



attention and the key sections of the report. In response to questions from 
the Committee, the following point was noted: 

 

 Information would be available over time about the impact of the 
changes to waste and recycling services. 

 
5.2 Resolved: that the report be noted. 
 

6. Financial forecasts 2017-18 
 
6.1 Selwyn Thompson introduced the report, the following key points were 

noted: 
 

 The report presented the Council’s financial position to September 2017, 
which was six months into the financial year. 

 There was a significant budget pressure in children and young people’s 
services. 

 The costs of placements for looked after children were high as were 
salary related costs for children’s social workers. 

 There were pressures in adult services, environment and technology & 
change. 

 The delay in the roll out of new arrangements for waste and recycling, 
as well as spending on fleet vehicles had created a budget pressure that 
should be managed down as the new arrangements and vehicles came 
in to service. 

 It was hoped that savings could still be made from the expansion of the 
shared IT service. 

 The Regeneration and Place division was overspending due to the 
underachievement of an income stream related to charges for utility 
companies for opening up highways. 

 
6.2 Dave Richards (Group Finance Manager, Children and Young People), 

Janet Senior and Selwyn Thompson responded to questions from the 
Committee, the following key points were noted: 

 

 There might be scope to increase the number of councils in the shared 
service but as the service became larger the governance arrangements 
might become more difficult. There might also be challenges for capacity 
and skills of the officers involved in the service. 

 Lewisham was in an unusual position compared to other local 
authorities because majority of secondary schools in many other 
authorities had become academies. This was why Lewisham’s figures 
for school deficits looked out of line with other authorities. 

 Improved disaster recovery provisions were included in the new 
arrangements for IT. The new technology being used by the Council 
made the system more robust. 

 The numbers of agency staff were being reduced because they were 
more expensive than full-time staff. Work was ongoing to recruit fulltime 
staff to vacant positions. 

 The methodology used to set aside the risk provision in the budget was 
based on a regular review of pressures in directorate spending. 

 An amount to fund budget pressures was also held corporately. 
 
Resolved: that the report be noted. 
 

7. Mid-year treasury management review 
Page 6



 
7.1 David Austin introduced the report, the following key points were noted: 
 

 The current treasury strategy was compliant and no changes were 
proposed. 

 The benchmarking information from the Council’s advisors on its 
investments indicated that it was in line with the London average. 

 Interest rates remained low, which meant securing return on investment 
was difficult. 

 There was a variation in the Council’s borrowing figures related to 
borrowing for Lewisham Homes to ease temporary accommodation 
pressures. Otherwise, the Council’s borrowing was where it was 
expected to be. 

 There had also be a restructuring of a LOBO (Lender Option, Borrower 
Option) loan. 

 Fifty percent of the Council’s borrowing was made up of public and 
private sources the other half was made up of borrowing for private 
finance initiatives. 

 Some of the capital spending programme was behind schedule, in 
particular there had been some delay in spending housing revenue 
account capital funds. This money had been allocated so it would still be 
spent. 

 Treasury management practices in local government were being 
reviewed by CIPFA  (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy), which set the prudential code, as well as by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government, which was 
carrying out a consultation that closed in December- on the reporting of 
treasury decisions. 

 Some authorities had been challenged on the level of borrowing they 
had undertaken for commercial schemes. 

 The European MiFID2 (the second Markets in Financial Instruments 
Directive) would also have a regulatory impact. 

 The purpose of the directive was to clarify whether investors were 
retailers or professionals. The Council would default to a retail position, 
which would limit the products that could be accessed and create new 
burdens. Therefore, the Council would opt for professional status and 
officers were currently following the process for gaining approval. 

 
7.2 David Austin and Janet Senior responded to questions from the Committee, 

the following key points were noted: 
 

 Both budgets and reserves were means for the Council to spend. 

 The treasury was the money that the Council held to back up spending 
through its budgets and reserves. 

 The treasury was made up of investment of reserves and borrowing as 
well as the money that came in to the Council from council tax and 
revenue support grant from the government. 

 The Council’s cash balances could not evenly be equated with 
borrowing and investing because there was money held by the Council 
that had been committed and that which had been paid by suppliers. 

 The Council adhered to the CIPFA financial code for investments, which 
prioritised investments in order of security, liquidity and return on 
investment. 

Page 7



 LOBO borrowing allowed lenders to vary the rates of interest being 
charged for loans, with options for borrowers to accept or reject the 
proposed revised rate of interest by repaying the entire loan. 

 Some LOBOs had been referred to as ‘toxic’ because other variables 
had been built into the loans (including interest rates in derivatives). In 
some LOBOs lenders had exposed borrowers to the derivative risk. 
Lewisham did not have any loans with this higher level of risk built in. 

 At the time they were taken out, LOBOs were the most effective 
mechanism for borrowing. 

 Section 106 accounts were included in the treasury management 
accounts. 

 Each PFI had a different effective interest rate. 

 When the PFIs were set up, the Council received funding from the 
government towards the payment of the PFI interest in order to cover 
the capital costs. 

 The revenue part of the PFI was met by funding allocated to schools 
from the schools budget but the Council also provided some funding to 
cover the remainder of the costs. 

 It might appear as though schools were only paying for PFI running 
costs, but they were also paying capital costs. 

 There were two loans to Lewisham Homes, which were being used for 
different purposes. Due to the rules around start aid, one loan had an 
added margin, the other did not. 

 There had been some savings generated from better management of 
households in temporary accommodation, delivery of extra care 
schemes and building of new housing. 

 The schools catering PFI in 1999 was focused on revenue expenditure. 
£4.5m was used to build kitchens in schools but the service element was 
larger. 

 
7.3 Resolved: that the report be noted.  
 

8. Select Committee work programme 
 
8.1 The Committee discussed the work programme for the meeting on 20 

December, the following key points were noted: 
 

 Councillors sometimes had difficulty navigating the Council’s website 
and contacting officers by telephone. It would be helpful if there was a 
section in the complaints report about the difficulties people faced 
contacting the Council. 

 There would be a single meeting focus on household budgets – 
reviewing data about households on middle incomes and the challenges 
they face as well as the potential implications for income generation and 
Council policy. 

 It was also agreed that items on PFIs and asset management would be 
considered at the meeting. 

 
8.2 Resolved: that the report be noted and the work programme for the 

Committee meeting on 20 December be agreed. 
 

9. Referrals to Mayor and Cabinet 
 
9.1 There were none. 
 
 

Page 8



The meeting ended at 9.30 pm 
 
 
Chair:  
 ---------------------------------------------------- 
 
Date: 
 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Accounts Select Committee 

Title Declaration of interests 

Contributor Acting Chief Executive Item 2 

Class Part 1 (open) 20 December 2017 

 
Declaration of interests 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
1. Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct: 
 
(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2) Other registerable interests 
(3) Non-registerable interests 

 
2. Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 
gain 

 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d) Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e) Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f) Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)  Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
 

(a) that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough;  

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



(b) and either 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
3.  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the 
following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you 

were appointed or nominated by the Council 
(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 

purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public 
opinion or policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25 

 
4. Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely 
to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more 
than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is 
not required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a 
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

  
5.  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any 
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded in 
the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and withdraw 
from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest 
which has not already been entered in the Register of Members’ 
Interests, or participation where such an interest exists, is liable to 
prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event before 
the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, participate in 

Page 12



consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph (c) below 
applies. 

 
(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 

disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect 
those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to the 
declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable 
interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the 
advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
6. Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not 
be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and 
advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

 
7. Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. 
These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 

relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 
(b) School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent 

or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless 
the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which 
you are a governor;  

(c) Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d) Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e) Ceremonial honours for members 
(f) Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS SELECT COMMITTEE  
 

 

REPORT TITLE 
 

 

Update on Private Finance Initiatives (PFI’s) 
 

KEY DECISION 
 

 

No 
 

Item No.  
5 

 

WARD 
 

 

N/A 
 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 

 

Head of Financial Services 
 

 

CLASS 
 

 

Part 1 
 

Date  
 

20 December 2017 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Council has eight operational PFI schemes.  This report provides summary 

information regarding those schemes and sets out the rationale and key financial 
considerations. 

 
 
2. PURPOSE 

 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide members of the Public Accounts Select 

Committee with an overview and update on the Council’s existing PFI schemes 
and to engender a wider discussion at the committee.  
 
 

3. RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Public Accounts Select Committee is recommended to note the contents of 

this report concerning the Council’s PFI schemes. 
 
 
4. POLICY CONTEXT 
  
4.1 Presenting financial information in a clear and meaningful format contributes directly 

to the council’s tenth corporate priority: inspiring efficiency, effectiveness and equity. 
 
4.2 The Council’s PFI schemes directly contribute to the achievement of the Council’s 

corporate priorities of Young People’s achievement and involvement (School PFI 
schemes), Decent Homes for all (Brockley Housing PFI scheme), Active Healthy 
Citizens (Downham Lifestyles PFI) and Clean, Green and Liveable (Street Lighting 
PFI). 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND TO PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVES 

 
5.1 The Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes are a public-private partnership used 

to deliver capital investment.  Typically, the private sector takes on responsibility for 
the design, build, financing and operation (DBFO) of a new asset, with the public 
sector agreeing to provide revenue funding over the life of the scheme.  A key 
feature of PFI schemes is that an element of risk associated with each stage of 
delivery has been transferred from the public sector to the private sector.  As there 

Page 61

Agenda Item 5



are various aspects to PFI schemes, the private sector partner usually consists of a 
consortium of companies who are specialists in each area. 
 

5.2 The key differences between a conventional public sector delivery of a new asset, 
and delivery through a PFI scheme are set out in the table below: 
 

 

Public Sector conventional delivery PFI scheme delivery 

Public sector is purchaser of assets Public sector is purchaser of services 

Public sector generally designs or builds 
the asset to its own specification 

Private sector consortium generally 
designs, builds, owns, operates and 
maintains physical assets 

Public sector directly meets the costs of 
designing and building the asset, as 
those costs are incurred 

Private consortium designs and builds 
the assets, and funds that work, in the 
expectation of recovering the cost over 
the life of the contract through on-going 
charges that the public sector will pay for 
the service over the life of the PFI 
scheme 

 
 

5.3 As at 31 March 2016, across the UK there were 716 PFI and PF21 projects (686 
operational) with a total capital value of £59.4 billion. 

 
5.4 PFIs have long been criticised for being an expensive way to deliver assets with 

significant profits being generated for the private sector partners.  At the 2017 
Labour party conference, the Shadow Chancellor went so far as to suggest that a 
new Labour government would review all PFI contracts and, if necessary, bring 
them under government control. There is an argument, however, that the PFI has 
enabled the public sector to procure both a range and standard of new assets that 
would have been much more difficult to deliver under traditional procurement 
methods and limited capital budgets2. 

 
 
6. OVERVIEW OF LEWISHAM COUNCIL’S PFI SCHEMES 

 
6.1 The Council has eight operational PFI schemes. Five of these are related to 

Schools, one to Housing (Brockley), one to Leisure (Downham) and one to Street 
Lighting. The table below is taken from the Council’s Statement of Accounts and 
shows for each scheme: the start and end date; the total estimated cost; total PFI 
credits (grant income from government); and the net cost.  

 

PFI Scheme 
Brockley 
Housing 

Downham 
Lifestyles 

Grouped 
Schools BSF 1 BSF 2 BSF 3 BSF 4 

Street 
Lighting 

                  

Start of Contract 2007 2007 2007 2009 2011 2012 2012 2011 

End of Contract 2027 2039 2036 2035 2037 2037 2038 2036 

Total Estimated 
Cost £285m £76m £226m £240m £85m £118m £223m £95m 

Total PFI Credits £207m £30m £674m £54m 

Net PFI Cost £78m £46m £218m £41m 

  
Note: BSF = Building Schools for the Future 

                                            
1 PF2 was a modification to PFI launched by the government in 2012 
2 Public Finance article 23 October 2017 

Page 62



 
 

Summary description of schemes 
 
6.2 Brockley Housing: the provision of the housing management services, repairs and 

maintenance and Decent Homes standard refurbishment work to 1,845 leasehold 
and tenanted properties in the Brockley area. 

 
6.3 Downham Lifestyles: the provision of the Downham Lifestyles Centre, providing 

health and leisure facilities. 
 
6.4 Grouped Schools PFI: the rebuild and running of three schools (Greenvale special 

school, Forest Hill secondary school and Prendergast Ladywell school). 
 
6.5 BSF 1: the rebuild and running of two secondary schools (Conisborough and 

Sedgehill). 
 
6.6 BSF 2: the construction and running of Trinity school. 
 
6.7 BSF 3: the rebuild and running of Deptford Green school. 
 
6.8 BSF 4: the rebuild and running of two secondary schools (Bonus Pastor and 

Prendergast the Vale) and Drumbeat special needs school. 
 
6.9 Street Lighting: a joint scheme with the London Borough of Croydon for the 

replacement and maintenance of street lighting columns. 
 
 
7. FINANCING OF LEWISHAM COUNCIL’S PFI SCHEMES 
 
7.1 As set out in section 5, in a PFI scheme the private sector is responsible for the 

upfront financing costs associated with delivering the new assets.  The Council’s 
contribution towards the scheme costs is through unitary charge payments which 
are made throughout the life of the scheme.  The cost to the Council is also 
subsidised by the government through PFI credits which are grant payments made 
at a fixed rate throughout the life of each scheme. 

 
7.2 The unitary charge payments include a fixed element and an element which is 

linked to inflation.  This means the overall value of unitary charges increases each 
year by an amount linked to inflation.  The total unitary charges paid by the 
Council amounted to £51,868k in 2016/17 (£51,087k in 2015/16); the breakdown 
of these charges by scheme is set out in the table below: 

 
 

  
Brockley 
housing 

Downham 
Lifestyles 

Grouped 
Schools BSF 1 BSF 2 BSF 3 BSF 4 

Street 
Lighting Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

2016/17 14,821 2,349 7,310 8,634 2,957 4,221 7,912 3,664 51,868 

2015/16 14,620 2,314 7,253 8,534 2,935 4,184 7,815 3,433 51,087 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



8. VALUE FOR MONEY OF PFI SCHEMES 
 

8.1  As PFI’s have evolved and both the public and private sectors have better 
understood the levels of risk transfer and the most effective ways to manage 
these, PFI contracts have been refined and standardised to provide the public 
sector with improved mechanisms to ensure better value for money.  Combined 
with robust and proactive contract management by officers within the Council, the 
following provisions included within PFI’s are designed to deliver value for money:   

 

 Periodic benchmarking of costs. 

 Regular liaison meetings between Council officers and private sector 
partners. 

 A requirement for the private sector partners to support the Council in the 
continuous achievement of best value as defined by economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness including social value. 

 A sharing of efficiencies achieved in procurement of e.g. insurance, 
financing and utilities. 

 Contractual provision for deductions from unitary charge in the event of sub-
standard service. 

 
8.2 These provisions help the Council to ensure it is getting the best possible 

outcomes and value for money from its PFI schemes. 
 
8.3 The Council actively monitors these contracts to ensure that all of the mechanisms 

identified above are appropriately applied and savings or efficiencies realised. 
Most recently, the Council has worked with CIPFA to undertake an efficiency 
review of a sample PFI scheme to see whether benefits could be realised. This 
review was based primarily on the Treasury guidance ‘Making Savings in 
Operational PFI Contracts’ and CIPFA’s experience.  The exercise has to date 
been able to deliver minor benefits across a range of areas within the contract and 
the review continues to explore whether further savings can be achieved.  Officers 
will be able to discuss this is greater depth at the meeting.     

 
 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 This report provide members of the Public Accounts Select Committee with an 

overview of the Council’s PFI schemes.  There are no direct financial implications in 
noting this report. 

 
 
10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.  
 
 
11.  CRIME AND DISORDER ACT IMPLICATIONS 
  
11.1 There are no crime and disorder implications directly arising from this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



12. EQUALITIES AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1  There are no equalities or environmental implications directly arising from this 

report.  
 
 
13. CONCLUSION 
 
13.1 The Council has eight active PFI schemes supporting service delivery across a 

range of service area.  The Council works with its private sector partners to ensure 
these schemes continue to provide value for money.   

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS AND REFERENCES 
 

Lewisham Council Statement of Audited Accounts 2016/17  
(see page 68 for note re PFI schemes) 
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/finances/Documen
ts/StatementofAccounts16-17AuditedV3.pdf 
 
Note on PFI’s produced by Scrutiny Unit of House of Commons: 
https://www.parliament.uk/documents/upload/0807pfi.pdf 

 
HM Treasury: 2016 summary data on PFI’s 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/579
271/PFI_and_PF2_projects_2016_summary_data.pdf 
 
Article in Public Finance magazine 23 October 2017 
http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/feature/2017/10/saving-private-
finance?utm_source=Adestra&utm_medium=email&utm_term= 
 

 

For further information on this report, please contact Selwyn Thompson, Head of 
Financial Services on 020 8314 6932  

  

Page 65

https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/finances/Documents/StatementofAccounts16-17AuditedV3.pdf
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/finances/Documents/StatementofAccounts16-17AuditedV3.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/documents/upload/0807pfi.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/579271/PFI_and_PF2_projects_2016_summary_data.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/579271/PFI_and_PF2_projects_2016_summary_data.pdf
http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/feature/2017/10/saving-private-finance?utm_source=Adestra&utm_medium=email&utm_term
http://www.publicfinance.co.uk/feature/2017/10/saving-private-finance?utm_source=Adestra&utm_medium=email&utm_term


This page is intentionally left blank



Public Accounts Select Committee 

Title Household budgets 

Contributor Head of Corporate Resources and Scrutiny Manager Item 6 

Class Part 1 (open) 20 December 2017 

 
Reasons for urgency and lateness 

 
The report has not been available for five clear working days before the meeting and 
the Chair is asked to accept it as an urgent item. The report cannot wait until the next 
meeting because the Council’s annual budget is due to be considered at that 
meeting. The report was not available for despatch on Tuesday 12 December due to 
officer commitments and workloads. 

 
1. Purpose of paper 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 19 April 2017, when agreeing on items for its 2017-18 work 

programme, the Committee decided to undertake a review into the pressures on 
household budgets in Lewisham. 

 
1.2 The Committee discussed a scoping paper for a review at its meeting in July 2017. It 

also received an update on the work of the Poverty Commission from officers 
working for that group. 

 
1.3 The Committee agreed that, in light of the Poverty Commission’s comprehensive 

review of housing, employment and childcare for low income families, it would look at 
the pressures facing middle income households. Given the demands on the 
Committee’s work programme, it was also agreed that the review would focus on a 
single meeting with primary focus given to analysis and review of existing data. 

 
1.4 This report sets out information and analysis for the Committee to consider. 
2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Select Committee is asked to: 
 

 note the content of the report; 

 direct questions to officers in attendance at the meeting on 20 December. 
 
3 Policy context 
3.1 Lewisham has a sustainable communities strategy1, which sets out a vision of a 

borough which is dynamic and prosperous - where people are part of vibrant 
communities and town centres, well connected to London and beyond. The content 
of this paper reflects this vision. 
 

3.2 The content of this paper is also consistent with the Council’s corporate priorities2: 

                                                           
1 Lewisham's Sustainable Communities Strategy  
2 Lewisham Council's Corporate Priorities  

Page 67

Agenda Item 6

http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/counciljobs/executive-recruitment/Documents/SustainableCommunityStrategy2008-2020.pdf
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/performance/Documents/CouncilPriorities.pdf


 The Council is committed to strengthening the local economy by gaining 
resources to regenerate key localities and strengthening employment skills. 

 It is a Council priority to protect children and to help working families with access 
to affordable childcare. 

 There is an overarching Council priority to inspire efficiency, effectiveness and 
equity in the delivery of services. 

 
4 Background 
 

The global financial crisis and the cost of living 
4.1 The global financial crisis in 2007/08 shook the foundations of Britain’s banking 

sector and spilled over into the rest of the economy. This prompted the government 
to act in order to stabilise the country’s financial industry. 
 

4.2 As the government took emergency measures to stabilise Britain’s banks, 
households began to reduce their spending. The Office for National Statistics (ONS) 
subsequently reported that by the end of 2008 total spending by households fell for 
the first time since 1968. Household spending then fell for a further two quarters, for 
the first time since the records began. 

 
4.3 As the situation began to stabilise and uncertainty about jobs and the cost of living 

eased, the pressure on household budgets decreased. Nonetheless, Office for 
National Statistics figures3 show that over the last decade real earnings growth has 
been weak. 

 
4.4 Furthermore, as highlighted during the discussion about Britain leaving the European 

Union at the Committee’s meeting in April 2017, the country is entering into a period 
of uncertainty and the pressure on household budgets is likely to become an 
increasing issue of concern for Lewisham residents. 

 
The Council’s budget challenge 

 
4.5 In the period following from the financial crisis, the government moved to reduce its 

spending and the requirement for borrowing. It drew on the resources of the public 
sector to make deep and sustained reductions in spending on services. The cuts to 
funding for local government have had a major impact on the way in which services 
are managed and delivered. 

 
4.6 The Lewisham Future Programme is the Council’s organisational approach to 

making the savings required by the Government. The Programme has enabled 
officers to identify a set of thematic and cross-cutting reviews, from which the Council 
targets its savings activities. Some examples of these include: smarter assessment 
arrangements and deeper integration of health and social care, incorporating public 
health; approaches to safeguarding and early intervention services; opportunities for 
asset rationalisation; a strategic review of income generation and the drive to make 
further reductions in management and corporate overheads. 

 
                                                           
3 Office for National Statistics- analysis of real earnings November 2017: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/articles/supple
mentaryanalysisofaverageweeklyearnings/latest 

Page 68

https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/articles/supplementaryanalysisofaverageweeklyearnings/latest
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/articles/supplementaryanalysisofaverageweeklyearnings/latest


4.7 The Council has committed to shielding frontline services from cuts, with the 
intention that the most vulnerable are protected from steep reductions in services. 
Nonetheless, the medium term financial strategy, considered by the select committee 
in July, highlighted that the Council was required to find savings of £33m in the two 
years to 2019/22 - £22m in 2018/19 and £11m in 2019/20. It was also noted that 
from 2010 to 2020 this would bring the total savings delivered (and required in the 
years to 2020) to £193m, of which £160m have been agreed with £153m delivered 
and £7m in the forecast overspend for 2017/18. 

 
4.8 The Committee has noted in regular budget reports that there is an outlook for 

austerity until at least 2020/21. Yet, the level of cuts required by the Government is 
becoming increasingly difficult for the Council to deliver. In two of the past three 
years, the Council has used its reserves to balance its budget and at the end of each 
of these years directorate budgets have been overspent as officers find it more 
difficult to deliver savings and maintain services at the same time. In the budget 
report to Council in the spring of 2017 it was reported that: 

 
‘…the Council cannot do all that it once did, nor meet all those expectations that 
might once have been met, for we are in a very different financial position than just a 
few years ago. Very severe financial constraints have been imposed on Council 
services with cuts to be made year on year on year…’ 
(Budget report 2017, p8) 

 
The role of scrutiny 

 
4.9 Scrutiny committees in Lewisham are proactive in their attempts to improve the lives 

and wellbeing of people in Lewisham. There are a number of reports and reviews, 
which are related to the issue of household budgets. Some examples are given 
below. 

 
4.10 The Public Accounts Select Committee’s 2012 review of fairness in procurement, 

pay and employment practices at the Council drew on work carried out by fairness 
commissions at other councils. The Committee welcomed Lewisham’s efforts to 
ensure equality in the workforce. It also welcomed the Council’s support for paying 
employees the London living wage in Lewisham, both to direct employees of the 
Council and to employees paid by sub-contractors. 

 
4.11 The Committee’s review was carried out over a series of evidence gathering 

sessions and feedback from the local community was also sought. The Committee 
recognised that public services were a significant employer in the Borough and it 
wanted to determine how the Council could make residents more aware of 
opportunities at the Council for the employment of local people – in particular on 
trainee and apprenticeship schemes. 

 
4.12 The Sustainable Development Select Committee’s review of financial exclusion in 

Lewisham (also in 2012) sought to explore the problems experienced by people 
without access to financial products and services. Members were concerned about 
the impact of the recession on vulnerable households in Lewisham. The Committee 
sought to explore how residents could gain better access financial products and how 
they might be better supported to avoid getting into financial difficulty. 

Page 69



 
4.13 The Committee also found that there were increased pressures on those who are 

financially excluded, or likely to become excluded, including: 

 Increased unemployment and lack of job opportunities 

 Increased costs of living 

 Increased rents, especially within the private rented sector 

 Rising energy bills 

 Changes to benefits system 
 
4.14 The Committee took a range of evidence from partners, including support 

organisations and Lewisham’s credit union. Members recommended that a financial 
inclusion partnership be set up to bring together partners in Lewisham in order to 
avoid vulnerable households becoming financially excluded. 

 
4.15 The Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee’s poverty review in 2016 took 

evidence from officers and external witnesses about the extent of poverty, and its 
impact, in Lewisham. The Committee’s resulting report and recommendations led the 
Council’s executive to set up a commission to explore the causes, and potential 
solutions, to the issue of poverty in the borough. 

 
Lewisham’s Poverty Commission4 

 
4.16 At the beginning of September 2016, Mayor and Cabinet considered a response to 

the recommendations of the Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee’s 
poverty review. The Mayor appointed Councillor Dromey as the cabinet lead for 
coordinating the Council’s efforts to tackle poverty. It also agreed the creation of a 
‘poverty taskforce’ to develop a comprehensive poverty strategy for Lewisham. 

 
4.17 Setting up the Lewisham Poverty Commission in February 2017, Councillor Dromey 

(Commission Chair), said that it would be ‘…looking to develop innovative policy 
responses that can make a real difference, even in these difficult times’.5 The 
Council has invited representatives of organisations with a special interest in poverty 
to work alongside councillors, in order to develop new policy approaches to tackling 
poverty in the borough. 

 
4.18 The Commission held a series of meetings as well as engagement activities with 

local people. It submitted its final report to Lewisham’s full Council in November 
20176. 

 
5 Household budgets 
5.1 The Committee is interested to understand more about the pressures facing 

households on average incomes. It recognises the primary importance of households 
in poverty, however, it is also concerned about the impact of rising costs and stunted 
income growth on the ability of households to reach a decent standard of living. The 
demands on household budgets are illustrated by the work on the minimum income 
standard, which is compiled by the Joseph Rowntree Foundation. 

                                                           
4See: http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s43839/Poverty%20Review.pdf 
5 Poverty commission: https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/news/Pages/New-poverty-commission-launched.aspx 
6 Tackling poverty in Lewisham: https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/inmyarea/Pages/Tackling-poverty-in-
Lewisham.aspx 

Page 70

https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/news/Pages/New-poverty-commission-launched.aspx
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/inmyarea/Pages/Tackling-poverty-in-Lewisham.aspx
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/inmyarea/Pages/Tackling-poverty-in-Lewisham.aspx


 
Minimum income standard 

 
5.2 The Joseph Rowntree Foundation has carried out research to determine what people 

in the UK believe is a minimum acceptable standard of living7. Researchers ask 
groups of participants to determine what necessities households need to have in 
order to reach an acceptable minimum standard of living. The results of the 
assessment are challenged and refined by other groups until such point that there is 
consensus about what constitutes a minimum acceptable standard. ‘…a minimum is 
more than about survival alone. However, it covers needs not wants; necessities, not 
luxuries; items that the public think people need in order to be part of society.’ 
(Joseph Rowntree Foundation, 2016) 

 
5.3 Participants in the research are split into four groups representing four different 

households: 

 Loan parent household 

 Couple with young children 

 Couple without children 

 Retired couple 
 
5.4 Groups are asked to comment on the decisions made by other groups until a 

consensus can be reached about what constitutes a minimum standard. The level of 
detail in the standard is high. Researchers have collected a range of household 
items and clothing and determined replacement cycles. Nutritionists asses the 
household requirements for food shopping and calculations have been made for the 
costs of services and activities. 
 

5.5 Using the same methodology, the Trust for London has created a minimum income 
standard for London. The Trust’s London report sets out several key differences 
between the MIS in London and elsewhere in the UK. As might be anticipated, a 
significant difference in costs is due to the price of housing in London. There are also 
differences in the cost of childcare, transport and leisure activities. 

 
The difference between poverty and minimum incomes 

 
5.6 The minimum income standard and discussions about poverty are connected but 

people who fall below the standard are not always considered to be in poverty. The 
picture below illustrates how the minimum income standard and definitions of poverty 
are related. 

                                                           
7 JRF - Minimum income calculator- https://www.jrf.org.uk/minimum-income-calculator-do-you-earn-enough-
basic-standard-living 

Page 71

https://www.jrf.org.uk/minimum-income-calculator-do-you-earn-enough-basic-standard-living
https://www.jrf.org.uk/minimum-income-calculator-do-you-earn-enough-basic-standard-living


 
 
5.7 Lewisham’s Poverty Commission was tasked with agreeing a definition for poverty 

for the borough. It accepted the definition being used by the Joseph Rowntree 
Foundation: ‘When a person’s resources (mainly their material resources) are not 
sufficient to meet their minimum needs (including social participation).’8 
 

5.8 The Joseph Rowntree Foundation and its partners have also developed a minimum 
income calculator9 to demonstrate the different levels of income households need in 
order to meet the minimum income standard. The calculator itemises household 
expenditure to indicate how much needs to be spent on various items in order to 
reach a minimum acceptable standard (as judged by participants in the research). 
Using the calculator, a set of household budgets have been created (below), based 
on the four key households used to develop the minimum income standard. 
 

5.9 The cost of housing is a significant determining factor in the amount of disposable 
income that households have available. The minimum income calculator uses rental 
figures based on the minimum standard deemed acceptable for each of the example 
households defined by the research. It is also weighted for inner London but it 
calculates that accommodation for a single parent household in social housing would 
cost in the region of £130p/w and for a family with two children £150p/w. This can be 
compared with median rents in Lewisham: 

 

Type of rental Monthly cost Weekly cost 

Room £650 £150 

Studio £850 £196 

Two bedrooms £1350 £312 

Three bedrooms £1600 £369 

 

                                                           
8 JRF, a definition of poverty, https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/definition-poverty 
9 Minimum Income Calculator: http://www.minimumincome.org.uk/ 

Page 72

http://www.minimumincome.org.uk/


5.10 The charts set out an approximate proportion of each of these households’ income is 
spent on each of the key items as well as an approximation of the required level of 
household income for each of these household types: 

 

 
 

Food
9% Alcohol

1% Clothing
4%

Water rates
1%

Council Tax
3%

Gas, electricity, etc
2%

Household goods
3%

Household services
3%

Childcare
34%

Personal goods and 
services

4%

Travel costs
7%

Social and cultural 
activities

9%

Rent
20%

Single working parent (1 child, under 4) weekly expenditure

Household annual income 
requirement: £43,584

Page 73



 
 

 
 

Food
11% Alcohol

1%

Clothing
5%

Water rates
1%

Council Tax
3%

Gas, electricity, etc
2%

Household goods
3%

Household services
2%

Childcare
31%

Personal goods and 
services

5%

Travel costs
11%

Social and cultural 
activities

10%

Rent
15%

Couple with two children (one under four, one primary age) weekly 
expenditure

Food
13% Alcohol

1%

Clothing
2% Water rates

1%

Council Tax
3%

Gas, electricity, etc
3%

Household goods
2%

Household services
1%

Personal goods and 
services

4%

Travel costs
14%

Social and cultural 
activities

12%

Rent
44%

Working age couple without children weekly expenditure

Household annual 
income requirement:
£42,944

Household annual income 
requirement: £57,863 

Page 74



 
 

 
Lewisham’s households 

 
5.11 In the 2011 census a question was asked about household composition, which 

provided a breakdown of the different household types in Lewisham: 
 

Food, 18%

Alcohol, 2%

Clothing, 3%

Water rates, 1%

Council Tax, 5%

Gas, electricity, etc, 5%

Other housing costs, 0%

Household goods, 4%

Household services, 2%

Personal goods and 
services, 8%Travel costs, 2%

Social and cultural 
activities, 22%

Rent, 28%

Retired couple (no dependent children) weekly expenditure

Household annual 
income requirement:
£27,070

Page 75



 
Source: ONS - 2011 Census (KS105EW)10 
 

National household incomes 
 
5.12 The following three graphs from the Resolution Foundation report on living standards 

in April 2017 show where and why the squeeze is being felt. 
 
5.13 This first graph shows how the real-terms squeeze on incomes has returned in 2017. 

Average weekly earnings are no higher now than they were in 2005. The squeeze 
continues with inflation running at up to 1% above wage growth. And earnings are 
not forecast to return to pre- 2008 crises levels until well into the 2020s.  
 

                                                           
10 Nomis 2017: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/localarea?compare=1946157254#section_7_4  

Page 76

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/localarea?compare=1946157254#section_7_4


 
 
5.14 This earnings squeeze is the most severe for the past 150 years, considerably more 

than the impact of the twentieth centuries recessions. Also different to previous 
recessions is how, with the exception of the very poorest and very richest, the impact 
has been relatively equally felt. 

 
 

Page 77



5.15 This difference is further shown by the distribution of wage growth by decile of the 
working population in the graph below. Wages have been protected for the lower 
earning portion of the workforce at the same time as welfare support or benefits (e.g. 
child tax credits) have been restricted for those earning more. 

 

 
 
5.16 The NOMIS census information records the Lewisham average earnings by 

residence for a full time worker in November 2017 as follows, compared to London 
and the UK. 

 

Gross Pay Lewisham London UK 

Weekly income  £633.3 £654.6 £552.2 

Annual income £32,932 £34,039 £28,740.4 

Lewisham position v others - 97% 115% 

 
  

Page 78



Sources 
 
BBC: Seven reasons it helps to have rich parents: http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-39519844 
BBC: a third of UK lives on inadequate income, says think tank 
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/business-38970227 
Demos: next steps for financial resilience 
https://www.demos.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Next-steps-for-financial-
resilience.pdf 
Financial Times (2016): ‘We’re struggling to get by on £200,000 a year’ 
https://www.ft.com/content/d6f1e58e-20c9-11e6-aa98-db1e01fabc0c 
Guardian (2017): minimum income standard: 
https://www.theguardian.com/society/datablog/2017/feb/17/millions-of-people-fall-below-
the-uks-minimum-income-standard-in-data 
IFS: impact of tax and benefit reforms on household income: 
https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/9164 
IFS: historically weak growth income standards, households with children fare the worst: 
https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/8958 
IFS, Does free childcare help parents work? https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/8792 
Institute for Fiscal Studies (IFS): https://www.ifs.org.uk/ 
Institute for Public Policy Research (IPPR) 2017: Income Crisis: 
http://www.ippr.org/files/publications/pdf/The-not-quite-managings-depth-of-income-crisis-
in-the-UK_Apr2017.pdf?noredirect=1 
Joseph Rowntree Foundation, minimum income standards 2017 report: 
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/minimum-income-standard-uk-2017 
Lewisham Council- Annual Monitoring Report: 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s53986/Annex%201%20AMR%202016
%2017.pdf  
Lewisham Council- Budget report 2017: 
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=4255&Ver=4  
Lambeth Council financial resilience strategy: 
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/documents/s65134/Financial%20Resilience%20Scoping
%20Paper.pdf 
Minimum income calculator: 
http://www.minimumincome.org.uk/ 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) – breakdown of family spending: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/personalandhouseholdfinances/ex
penditure/bulletins/familyspendingintheuk/financialyearendingmarch2016 
ONS- effect of the recession on household budgets: 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20160105160709/http://www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp
171766_256980.pdf 
ONS - Nowcasting household income in the UK 2017: 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/personalandhouseholdfinances/inc
omeandwealth/bulletins/nowcastinghouseholdincomeintheuk/financialyearending2017 
Positive aging council: http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/getinvolved/positive-ageing-
council/Pages/default.aspx 
Public Accounts Select Committee, fairness in procurement and pay and employment 
practices review 2012: http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-
scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-
Reports/Documents/Fairness%20in%20procurement%20review.pdf 

Page 79

http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-39519844
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/business-38970227
https://www.demos.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Next-steps-for-financial-resilience.pdf
https://www.demos.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Next-steps-for-financial-resilience.pdf
https://www.ft.com/content/d6f1e58e-20c9-11e6-aa98-db1e01fabc0c
https://www.theguardian.com/society/datablog/2017/feb/17/millions-of-people-fall-below-the-uks-minimum-income-standard-in-data
https://www.theguardian.com/society/datablog/2017/feb/17/millions-of-people-fall-below-the-uks-minimum-income-standard-in-data
https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/9164
https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/8958
https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/8792
https://www.ifs.org.uk/
http://www.ippr.org/files/publications/pdf/The-not-quite-managings-depth-of-income-crisis-in-the-UK_Apr2017.pdf?noredirect=1
http://www.ippr.org/files/publications/pdf/The-not-quite-managings-depth-of-income-crisis-in-the-UK_Apr2017.pdf?noredirect=1
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/minimum-income-standard-uk-2017
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s53986/Annex%201%20AMR%202016%2017.pdf
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s53986/Annex%201%20AMR%202016%2017.pdf
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=4255&Ver=4
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/documents/s65134/Financial%20Resilience%20Scoping%20Paper.pdf
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/documents/s65134/Financial%20Resilience%20Scoping%20Paper.pdf
http://www.minimumincome.org.uk/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/personalandhouseholdfinances/expenditure/bulletins/familyspendingintheuk/financialyearendingmarch2016
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/personalandhouseholdfinances/expenditure/bulletins/familyspendingintheuk/financialyearendingmarch2016
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20160105160709/http:/www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171766_256980.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20160105160709/http:/www.ons.gov.uk/ons/dcp171766_256980.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/personalandhouseholdfinances/incomeandwealth/bulletins/nowcastinghouseholdincomeintheuk/financialyearending2017
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/personalandhouseholdfinances/incomeandwealth/bulletins/nowcastinghouseholdincomeintheuk/financialyearending2017
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/getinvolved/positive-ageing-council/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/getinvolved/positive-ageing-council/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/Fairness%20in%20procurement%20review.pdf
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/Fairness%20in%20procurement%20review.pdf
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/Fairness%20in%20procurement%20review.pdf


Resolution foundation - real incomes falling despite record employment: 
http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/media/press-releases/real-wages-falling-in-40-per-cent-
of-the-economy-despite-further-falls-in-unemployment/ 
Sustainable Development Select Committee, financial exclusion review, 2012: 
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-
Reports/Documents/Fairness%20in%20procurement%20review.pdf 
Trussell Trust: https://www.trusselltrust.org/ 
Trust for London, a minimum income standard for London 2016/17: 
https://www.trustforlondon.org.uk/publications/minimum-income-standard-london-201617/ 
Valuation Office Agency, Private Rental Market Statistics, monthly rents recorded between 
1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 for London 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/632806/Lond
on_bedroom_maps.pdf 
 
For further information please contact David Austin (Head of Corporate Resources, 
david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk) or Timothy Andrew (Scrutiny Manager, 
timothy.andrew@lewisham.gov.uk) 

Page 80

http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/media/press-releases/real-wages-falling-in-40-per-cent-of-the-economy-despite-further-falls-in-unemployment/
http://www.resolutionfoundation.org/media/press-releases/real-wages-falling-in-40-per-cent-of-the-economy-despite-further-falls-in-unemployment/
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/Fairness%20in%20procurement%20review.pdf
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/Fairness%20in%20procurement%20review.pdf
https://www.trusselltrust.org/
https://www.trustforlondon.org.uk/publications/minimum-income-standard-london-201617/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/632806/London_bedroom_maps.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/632806/London_bedroom_maps.pdf


Public Accounts Select Committee 

Title Select Committee work programme 2017-18 

Contributor Scrutiny Manager Item 7 

Class Part 1 (open) 20 December 2017 

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To advise Committee members of the work programme for the 2017-18 municipal 

year, and to agree the agenda items for the next meeting. 
 
2. Summary 
 
2.1 In April, the committee drew up a draft work programme for the municipal year 2017-

18. 
 
2.2 The work programme can be reviewed at each Select Committee meeting to take 

account of changing priorities. 
 
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 The Committee is asked to: 
 

 Note the work plan attached at Appendix B and discuss any issues arising from 
the programme;  

 look at the items scheduled for the next meeting and clearly specify the 
information and analysis required, based on desired outcomes, so that officers 
are able to meet expectations; 

 review all forthcoming key decisions, attached at Appendix C, and consider any 
items for further scrutiny. 

 give consideration to the report at Appendix D, which sets out the policy and 
legislative programme of the newly elected government. 

 
4. Work programme 
 
4.1 The work programme for 2017-18 was agreed at the 19 April 2017 meeting. 

 
4.2 The Committee is asked to consider if any urgent issues have arisen that require 

scrutiny and if any existing items are no longer a priority and can be removed from the 
work programme. Before adding additional items, each item should be considered 
against agreed criteria. The flow chart attached at Appendix A may help Members 
decide if proposed additional items should be added to the work programme. The 
Committee’s work programme needs to be achievable in terms of the amount of 
meeting time available. If the Committee agrees to add additional item(s) because 
they are urgent and high priority, Members will need to consider which medium/low 

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



priority item(s) should be removed in order to create sufficient capacity for the new 
item(s). 

 
5. The next meeting 
 
5.1. The following reports are scheduled for the meeting on 6 February 2018: 
 

Agenda item Review type Link to corporate priority Priority 
 

Annual budget 2018/19 Performance 
monitoring 

Inspiring efficiency, 
effectiveness and equity 

High 

 
6. Financial implications 
 
6.1. There are no financial impliactions arising from the implementation of the 

recommendations in this report. There may be financial implications arising from some 
of the items on the work programme (especially reviews) and these will need to be 
considered when preparing those items/scoping those reviews. 

 
7. Legal implications 
 
7.1. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 

devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

 
8. Equalities implications 
 
8.1. The Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, 

Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing the 
separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came into 
force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

 
8.2. The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 
 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

 
8.3. There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme and 

all activities undertaken by the Committee will need to give due consideration to this. 
 
Background documents 
 
Lewisham Council’s Constitution 

Page 82



Centre for Public Scrutiny: The Good Scrutiny Guide 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Scrutiny work programme – prioritisation process 
Appendix B – 2017-18 work plan 
Appendix C – Key decision plan 

Page 83



Appendix A 
 

 

Page 84



Work Item Type of review Priority

Strategic 

priority

Delivery 

deadline 19-Apr 28-Jun 13-Jul 27-Sep 16-Nov 20-Dec 06-Feb 21-Mar

Lewisham Future Programme
Performance 

monitoring
High CP10 Ongoing Savings

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair
Constitutional 

requirement
High CP10 Apr

Select committee work programme 2017/18
Constitutional 

requirement
High CP10 Ongoing

Income generation and commercialisation
Performance 

monitoring
High CP10 Mar

Management report
Performance 

monitoring
Medium CP10 Ongoing

School budgets (Jointly with CYP select committee)
Performance 

monitoring
High CP 2 Jun

IT Strategy update Standard item High CP10 Jul

Final outturn 2016/17
Performance 

monitoring
Medium CP10 Jun

Medium term financial strategy Standard item Medium CP10 Jul

Financial forecasts 2017/18
Performance 

monitoring
High CP10 Ongoing

Mid-year treasury management review
Performance 

monitoring
Medium CP10 Nov

Cost pressures in adult and children's social care
Performance 

monitoring
High CP10 Sep

Communicating the Council's budget positon Policy development High CP10 Sep

Household budgets review Rapid review High CP10 Feb Scope

Private finance initiatives Standard item Medium CP10 Dec

Annual complaints report
Performance 

monitoring
Low CP10 Dec

Asset management update
Performance 

monitoring
Medium CP10 Mar

Annual budget 2018/19 Standard item High CP10 Jan

Business rates consultation Standard item High CP10 Tbc

Audit panel update
Constitutional 

Requirement
Low CP10 Mar

Item completed

Item on-going 1) Wed 19 Apr 5) Thu

Item outstanding 2) Wed 28 Jun 6) Wed

 Proposed timeframe 3) Thu 13 Jul 7) Tue

Item added 4) Wed 27 Sep 8) Wed 21 Mar

Public Accounts Select Committee Work Programme 2017/18 Programme of work

Meetings

16 Nov

20 Dec

6 Feb

P
age 85



 

1 SCS 1 1 CP 1

2 SCS 2 2 CP 2

3 SCS 3 3 CP 3

4 SCS 4 4 CP 4

5 SCS 5 5 CP 5

6 SCS 6 6 CP 6

7 CP 7

8 CP 8

9 CP 9

10 CP 10

Shaping Our Future: Lewisham's Sustainable 

Community Strategy 2008-2020
Corporate Priorities

Priority Priority

Ambitious and achieving Community Leadership

Safer

Young people's achievement and 

involvement

Empowered and responsible Clean, green and liveable

Clean, green and liveable Safety, security and a visible presence 

Active, healthy citizens

Inspiring efficiency, effectiveness and 

equity 

Healthy, active and enjoyable Strengthening the local economy

Dynamic and prosperous Decent homes for all

Protection of children

Caring for adults and older people

P
age 86



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan January 2018 - April 2018 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent to Kevin Flaherty, the Local Democracy Officer, at the Council 
Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 87



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

September 2017 
 

Contract Awards for Support 
Services for Young People with 
Housing and Support Needs 
 

19/12/17 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Business 
Panel 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health, Wellbeing and 
Older People 
 

 
  

 

March 2017 
 

Achilles Street Regeneration 
Proposals 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

August 2017 
 

Fostering Strategy 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

October 2017 
 

Wide Horizons refinancing 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

Working in the Private Rented 
Sector 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 

 
  

 

P
age 88



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Housing 
 

October 2017 
 

Disposal of the former Saville 
Centre 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

Annual Complaints Report 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member Policy & 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

September 2017 
 

Council Tax Base 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

October 2017 
 

Schools Minor Works 
Programme 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

New Homes Programme 
Update 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 

 
  

 P
age 89



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

  Customer Services and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

December 2017 
 

Business Rate Retention Pilot 
Pool 2018-19 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Review of National Non 
Domestic Rates Discretionary 
Discount Scheme for 
Businesses accredited to 
Living Wage Foundation 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

Planning Service Statement of 
Community Involvement 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Planning Service Local 
Development Scheme 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

P
age 90



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

December 2017 
 

Planning Service Residential 
Extensions and Alterations 
SPD 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Excalibur Regeneration 
Programme Parts 1 & 2 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Decision to expand Addey and 
Stanhope School - Permission 
to Publish Revocation 
Proposal 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

London Councils Grants 
Programme 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Joan Millbank, 
Cabinet Member Third 
Sector & Community 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Oracle Financials archiving 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 

 
  

 

P
age 91



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Resources 
 

November 2017 
 

Contract award of new 
framework agreement for 
Personalised Care and Support 
in the Home" 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health, Wellbeing and 
Older People 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

Equinox Mental Health 
Accomodation Based Service 
Contract Award 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health, Wellbeing and 
Older People 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

Grove Park Streetscape 
Improvement  - Contract award 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Athena Violence Against 
Women and Girls Service 
Contract Extension 
 

10/01/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Janet Daby, 
Cabinet Member 
Community Safety 
 

 
  

 

September 2017 
 

Council Tax Base 
 

17/01/18 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 

 
  

 

P
age 92



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

November 2017 
 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
2018/19 
 

17/01/18 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Local Development Scheme 
 

17/01/18 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Neighbourhood Planning 
 

17/01/18 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Business Rate Retention Pilot 
Pool 2018-19 
 

17/01/18 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 

 
  

 

P
age 93



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

December 2017 
 

Report of New Bermondsey 
Independent Inquiry Committee 
 

17/01/18 
Council 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris Barnham 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Council Budget 2018-19 
 

07/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

September 2017 
 

Review of Implementation of 
the Armed Forces Community 
Covenant 
 

07/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

School Admission 
Arrangements 2019-20 
 

07/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

September 2017 
 

School Deficits 
 

07/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 

 
  

 

P
age 94



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

November 2017 
 

New Homes Programme 
Update 
 

07/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Annual Pay Statement 
 

07/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Development of Partnership 
Arrangements for 
Neighbourhood Community 
Teams 
 

07/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Joan Millbank, 
Cabinet Member Third 
Sector & Community 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Annual Budget Update 
 

14/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

P
age 95



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

December 2017 
 

Proposed Change of use and 
site access site adjacent to 
Ashmead School and 265 
Lewisham Way 
 

14/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

September 2017 
 

Contract Award and Approval 
to Proceed with 1 FE 
expansion at Ashmead School 
 

14/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

Planning Service Statement of 
Community Involvement 
 

21/02/18 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Council Budget 2018-19 
 

21/02/18 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 
Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member 
Resources 
 

 
  

 

August 2017 
 

Response to Consultation 
regarding changes to Targeted 
Short Breaks Provision 
 

28/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 

 
  

 

P
age 96



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

August 2017 
 

School Improvement 
Partnership 
 

28/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

June 2017 
 

Joint Strategic Depot Review 
 

28/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Rachel 
Onikosi, Cabinet Member 
Public Realm 
 

 
  

 

October 2017 
 

Update on Fire Safety in 
Lewisham 
 

28/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

November 2017 
 

Private Sector Housing 
Assistance Policy 
 

28/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Damien Egan, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Programme Masterplan Brief 
 

28/02/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Acting 
Chief Executive and 
Executive Director for 

 
  

 

P
age 97



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Resources & 
Regeneration and 
Councillor Alan Smith, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

September 2017 
 

Agreed Syllabus Review and 
Syllabus Launch 
 

21/03/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

June 2017 
 

Deptford Lounge & Tidemill 
Academy Facilities 
Management and Centre 
Management Contract Award 
 

21/03/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Paul Maslin, 
Cabinet Member for 
Children and Young 
People 
 

 
  

 

December 2017 
 

Contract Award for Additional 
Accommodation Units in 
Young Persons Pathway for 
Care Leavers 
 

21/03/18 
Mayor and Cabinet 
(Contracts) 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Cabinet Member for 
Health, Wellbeing and 
Older People 
 

 
  

 

P
age 98



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2017
	2 Declarations of interest
	4 Annual complaints report
	5 Private finance initiatives
	6 Household budgets
	7 Select Committee work programme
	07 Appendix B - work plan 201217
	07 Appendix C - key decision plan 201217


